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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Municipal Legislative Body

Municipality of Loiza
Loiza, Pue o Rico

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major funds, and the
aggregate rema inin8 fund informatio n of the M unicipality oI Loiza as of a nd for the yea r e nded .l une 30,
2011 which collectively comprise the basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Municiparity's management. our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. we did not audit the financial
statements of the Brisas de Loiza project as of.rune 30,2011. Those statements were audited by other
auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included for Brisas de toiza Project, is based solely on the report ofthe other auditors.

Except as discussed in the following third and fourth para8raphs, below we conducted our aldit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the united States of America and the
standards applicable of financial audit contained in Governmental Audit standards, issued by the
comptroller Governmental of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting princ,ples used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

The accountin8 records of the Municipality of Loiza related to interfund transactions payabre were not
adequate, Accordingly, we were uneble to obtain suffjcjent evidence to support and satis{y ourselves
about the amount recorded in each major flnds and aggregate remaininS flJnds information as due
form/due to other funds, stated at 51,430,174 in the total governmental funds column of the balance
sheet.



INDEPENOENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED):

ln addition, the accounting records of the Municipality related to accounts payable were not adequate.
Accordingly, we were unable to obtain sufficient evidence to support and satisfy ourselves about the
amount recorded in the generalfund the accounts payable stated at S89G,S63 in the balance sheet of
the governmental funds.

ln our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, except for the effect of such
adjustment, ifany as mi8ht have been determined to be necessary had we been able to obtain sufficient
evidence to support and satisfy ourselves about the amount of accounts payable and interfund
transactions the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information ofthe Municipality of Loiza as oflune 30, 2011, and the respective changes
in financial position for the fiscal year then ended in conformity with accountin8 principles generally
accepted in the united states ofAmerica.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the fjnancial statements that
collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposed of additional analysis as required by U.S.
Offices of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and non profit
Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. The information in the
accompanying schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
general purpose financial statement and, in my opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in
relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management,s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 4 through 10 and 43 through
45 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historicalcontext. We have appljed certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparin8 the information and comparing the information for consistency with management,s responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.
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INDEPENOENT AUDITOR'S REPORT {CONTINUED):

ln accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February
25, 2012 on our consideration of the Municipality's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations contracts, grants agreements and
other matters. The purpose ofthat report is to describe the scope of our testing of internalcontrolover
financial reportinE and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an aldit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.

Febtuary 26, 2OL2

Aguas Buenas. Puerto Rico

License No. 1339
Expire December 1,2013

orfi$3 R. Dtlz NEGBO
OoI,IOOR PUEUCOAUTONEADO

The stamp No. E3053 ofthe Puerto Rico Society
of Certified Public Acaountants was affixed to the
original of thjs report.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF LOIZA
MaNAGEMEirf s DtscusstoN ANArysts

As OFIUNE 30,2011

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management of the Municipolity ol lor?o of the Commonwealth of puerto Rico (the .,Municipalitf)
provides this Morogemen(s Discussion ond Ararysis ofthe Municipality,s basic financial statements as
an overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Municipality for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the
additional information that we have furnished in the accompanying basic financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

. The Municipality's in the Govermental Activities has reported assets and net assets amounting to
527,834,132 and S10,5(H,452 respectively, in the accompanying statement of net assets, of which
the most significant assets are capital assets amounting to s24,150,974 (97 percent ol totol
Municipdliys dssets).

The Municiaplity in the same activities has reported total tiabilities amounting to 51222t670 in the
accompanying statement of net assets, of which the most significant liabili es are bonds, notes and
other long-term debt amounting to 515,175,824 (BB percent ol totol tidbitities).

The Municipality has reported total revenues amounting to 5L9,319,222 in the accompanying
Statement of Activities for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011. The most significant revenues
amounting in this statement are grants and entitlements and taxes were amounting to 512,059,703
162 percent o, totol rcvenues) and 54,3.4,976 (22 percent ol totol revenues,r, respectively.

The Municipality has reported a net change in net assets of revenues over expenditures amounting
to 51850,379 in the accompanying statement of activities.

. The Municipality's governm e nta I funds reported combined ending fund balances oJS1,S/t3,109.

. The Municipality has reported a deficit for the generalfund amounting to S3,171,it01.

OVERVIEW OFTHE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Municipality's financial statements include three components: (l) the government-wide financial
statements, (21the fund financial statements, and (3) the notes to the financial statements (collectively
known as the basia financialslat€ments).
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAI.ITY OF LOIZA

'o"on'I'g;:::'r:;;lfno"o'

Goverament-Wide Financial Statemeots

Ihe govenment-wide linonciol stotements arcdesigned to provide readers with a broad overview ofthe
Municipality's operations and finance as a whole in a manner similar to private-sector business. These
statements provide short-term and long-term information about the Municipaljqy's financial position,
which assist the Municipality's management to determine the economic condition at the end of the
fiscal year. These financial statements are prepared using the flow of economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This basically means that these financial statements follow
methods that are similar to those used by most businesses. They take into account all revenues and
expenses connected with the fiscal year ended lune 30,20U even if cash involved have not been
received or paid. The government-wide financial statements include: (1) the statements of net assets
and (2) the statement ofadivities.

Statement ot Net Assets

The statement of net ossets presents all of the Municipality's assets and liabilities, with the difference
between these two items reported as "net assets" (equity). Over time, increases or decreases in the net
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Municipality is either
improving or deterio rating.

Statement of Activities

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Muicipalitty's net assets changed
during the fiscal year ended Juae 30, 2011. All chan8es in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will not result in cash flows
until future fiscal periods (suah as uncollected taxes and earned but urused vacation leave). This
statement also presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each function
ofthe Municipality.

Both of the abovementioned financial statements present all the governmental activities of the
Municipality, which consist mostly by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (such as federal grants).
Most services provided by the Municipality fall into this category including culture and education,
ge nera I governme nt, health and sanitation, public safety, public housing and welfare, etc.

Fund Financial Statements

The Municipalitry's fund financial statements, which consist ofi (1) the balance sheet - governmental
funds and (2) the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - Bovernmental
funds. These financial statements report the financial position and results of operations of the
Municipality's governmental f unds.
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COMMONWEAI.TH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF LOIZA
MaNAGEMEtvl"s Dts€usstoN ANA|ysts

As OFIUNE 30,2011

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to mainta,n control over resources that have been
segre8ated for specific activities or objectives. The Municipality, like most other state and rocar
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requarements. Each fund is considered an independent fiscal entity accounted for within a set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenue, and expenditures. Fund
accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in
demonstrating compliancewith legal, financial and contractual provisions.

The fund financial statements focrrs on: (1) individual parts of the Municipality,s government and (2)
reporting the Municipalitry's operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements.
For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality classifies its funds within the following fund
categories: (1) Beneral fund, (2) debt service fund, (3) permanent improvement fund and (4) capital
projects funds (collectively known as the "governmental funds,,).

Governmental funds are used to account for all of the services provided by the Munjcipality.
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the governmental-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmentalfund financial statements focus on near term inflows and oumows
of spendable resources. They also focus on the balances of spendable resources available at the end of
the fiscal year (.iune 30, 2011). This approach is known as using the flow of current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. These statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the Municipality's finances that assists in determining whether there will be
adequate financial resources available to meet the current needs of the Muni€ipality, that is, evaluating
the Municipalitys near-term fi nancing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the fund information presented for Bovernmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the Bovernment-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the Municipality,s near_term financial
decisions.

For financial reporting purposes the Municipality has four major fundsi (1) the Beneral fund {2) the debt
service fund (3) permanent improvement fund.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and the fund financial statements. The
notes to the basic financial statements can be found immediately following the basic financial
statementS.
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COMMONWEAI.TH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF I.OIZA
MANAGEMEIVI,S DIscUssIoN ANAI,YSIS

As OFIU E 30, 2011

Government-wide Financial Statements Summary

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a usefur indicator of the Municiparitys financiar
position. ln the case ofthe Municipaljty, assets exceeded liabilities by S1O,GO4 462 at.rune 30, 2011.

As previously discussed, by far the largest portion of the Municipality's net assets reflect its investment
in capital assets (e.9., land, buildings, ma.hinery, equipment and all other property), less any related
debt used to acqlire those assets that is still outstanding. The Municipality uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Otherwise,
Municipality's Basic Financialstatement, not present increase in capital actives and acrued depreciation
expenses, because al the time prepare the financial statement, Municipal Administrative was
reevaluating actives files to stablish of capitalization. The following is a condensed presentation of the
Municipalivs financial position and results of operations, as reported in the Eovernment-wide financaal
statements including its component unit, Brisas de Loiza proyect:

Condensed Statement of Net Assets:

Current assets

Capital assets

Totalassets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets/(liabilities):
lnvested in capitalassets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net assets

,une 30.2010
5 3,223,031

26.209.725

4,733,512
12.722.130

L7.455,92

18,359,836
4,646,303

174.262.Os6)

t !J5!L083

lune 30,2011
S 3,683,158

24.150,974

27.a34,L32

5,633,313
7t,596,297

17.229.670

L7,385,676
4,859,456

111,778,352)

Sto,604lt62

An additional portion ofthe Municipality,s net assets (1 percent) represents resources that are subject
to restrictions on how they may be used. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality has
reported positive balances in two categories of net assets.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF I-OIZA

MAitaGEMENt s DtscussloN ANA|ysts
45 oF JUNE 30,2011

Condensed Statement of Activities:

Revenues:
Program revenues:

Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

General tevenues:
Property taxes
Municipal license taxes
Sales and use taxes
Con5truction excis€ tax
Grants and contributions
Rent

Licenses and permit
lnterest
Other

Total revenues
Expenses:

General administration
Public safety
Education, culture and recreatjonal
Community development
Public works and sanitation
Health and welfare
lnterest

Business type-activities:
HousinE

lnterest

Total expenses

Change in net assets

Net assets - at beginning of year

Net assets - at end of yea.

Fund Finaflcial Statements summary

June 30. 2010

5 400,497

84L,627
1.860.378

3,7O2,5O2

2,535,891

607,088
t,0a9,764

307,768
6,793,860

29,365
10,888

5,6s0
r.722.O74

16,198.850

6,559,891
7,728,295

969,592
151,O54

4,684,7A7

2,OAO,O51

794,926

349,259
713,624

15.837.€5

{638,63s}

9.392.?18

S 8.7s4.083

.lune 30,2011

5 4oi,2o6
1,628,559

3.430,340

5,466,105

2,976,763
375,593
189,577
203,643

6,592,59a
23,375
17,205
10,737

2.864,226

19.3L9.222

8,724,894
1,OO2,167

845,550
792,Aa6

4,116,053

\497,022
276,298

393,935

80.010

17.468.815

1,850,379

8,754.083

St0.604.4G2

As discussed earlier, the Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance,related legal requirements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUTYOF LOIZA
MaNAGEME TJS D6cusstoN ANALysts

As OF.ruNE 30, 2011

Governmental Funds - The focus of the Municipalit\/s governmentol Jurds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balanae ofspendoble rcsources. Such information is useful in assessing
the Municipality's financing requirements. ln paiiculat, unrcserved fund bolonce anay serve as a useful
measuae of a Eovernment's net resources available for spending at the end of fiscal year. The following
is a condensed presentation of the Municipality's balance sheet and results of operations of
governmental funds:

Condensed Balance Sheet - Governmental funds:

TotalAssets - Major Funds

Totalfusets - Nonmajor Funds
Total assets

Total Liabilities - Major Funds
Total Liabilities - Nonmajor Funds

Total liabilities

Fund Balances- Major Funds
Fund Balances- Nonmajor Funds
Unasigned

Total Fund Balance

Condensed Statement of Operations - GoveJnmental funds:

Total Revenues- Major Funds

Total Revenues- Nonmajor Funds
Total revenues

Total expenditures - Major Funds
Iotal expenditures - Nonmajor Funds

Total expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)

Revenues Over (under) Expenses

Fund galance at beginning of yeal

Fund Balance at end of year

lune 30,2011.

s 2,334,024
2.561,805
4.895.830

3,941,565 3,285,414
276s70 67,275

4,158.135 3.352,749

(1,0s8,17s)

t,tl2,Jao

June 30, 2010
s 2,883,390

1.389,350
4,272.7q

114,605

2,219,91A
2,494,531
(3,171.401)

1,543.108

14,232,276

1.564,587
15.795.863

75,777,285
2.131.805

17.903,090

13,804,725
s.062.917

L8.A67.702

14,279,442
5,347.737

19.567.199

935.000 2.128,000

1L,111,227) 1,428,s03

1.285.832 114,505

s 114.605 S 1,543,108
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COMMONWEAI.TH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF LOIZA
MANAGEMENT.S DIscUSsIoN ANAIY5IS

A5 OFIUNE 30,2011

Financial Contact

The Municipality's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, austomers,
investors and creditors) with a general overview of the Municipality,s finances and to demonstrate the
Municipality's accountability. lf you have questions about the report or need additional financial
information, contact the Municipality's Chief Financial Offcer on the 2d. floor of the Loiza City Hall,
Loiza, Puerto Rico.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF [O[ZA
STATEMEiIT OF NET AssETs

As OFJUNE 30,2011

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

ASSErs
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash with fiscal a8ent
Account receivable, sales tax
Accounts receivable other agencies
Other assets

Restricted cash

Capital assets, net

Total A5sds

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Due to other agencies
Tenants' security deposits
Long-term debt:

Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Totalliabilities

Net Assets:

lnvested in capitalassets, net of related debt
Restrided for:

Debt service
Replacements and others
Capital project and others

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets (deficiency)

GOVERNMENTAL

ACTIVITIES

5 s21,985

2,838,830
50,165
44,703

22,936,203

25,40L886

BUSINESS_

TYPE

ACTIVITIES

S ss,784
TOTAL

5 577,769
2,838,830

60,14s
44,703
76,734

744,951
24.750,97 4

u$34i132

7,O75,L17

427,467
598,611

t2,657

3,579,527
t1.596.297

_JJ;229,f'9

76,734
144,957

t,2t4,777

1A32246

999,870
427,461
598,611

3,546,415
9,690,724

15263,49r

t7,646,862
2,2L9,97A

2,494,531

171.222.966)

s 1lxr8l05

75,247

12,657

32,7t2
1.905.573

_1l)66;189

1723,s14)

744,957

44.6L4

s 1533t43)

76,923,348
2,219,97a

144,957

2,494,531

{11.178.3s2)

s 10,604-462

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Net (expense)/revenue

Generalrevenue:
Taxes:

Propertytaxes
Municipaltax
salestax
Construction excise tax

Grants and entitlements
Rent

Licenses and permit
lnte.est
Other

Totalgeneral revenues

Chan8es in net assets

Net assets at beginnin8

Net assets at end

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPAIJTY OF [O[ZA

STATEMEm OF Acnv[tEs (CoIflNUED)
FoRTHE YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,2011

GOVERNMENTAL

ACTIVITIES

s(11.931.894)

2,976,L36
375,593
789,577

203,643
6,592,598

23,31s
17,205
s,s00

2,464.226

13.847.853

1,915,9s9

9.222,446

5 ur38105

BUSINESS-WPE

ACTIVITIES TOTAI.

Sl7o.817l 5{12.002.711)

5,237

2,976,L63
375,593
749,517
203,643

6,592,s98
23,375
17,205
10,137

2.864,226

5,217 13.853.090

(5s,s80) 1,450,379

(468.353) 8.754.083

sl533t4:!) S rcEql]$2

The accompanyin8 notes are an integral part ofthese financialstatements.
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COMMONWEAI.TH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALIW OF TO1ZA

BALANcESHEET

GovERNMENTAL FUNDs

As OFJUNE 30,2011

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 896,503
Deferred income 360,186
Dueto otherfund 1,430,174
Dueto oth€r agencies 598,611

cashl
Cash in bank
Cash with fiscalagent

Receivables:

Governm ental agencies
Otherfunds
salestax

Total ass€ts

Liabilities:

Total liabilities

Fund balance
Restricted for:

Debt service

Other purposes

Unasigned

Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

GENERAL

EU!9

$ 64,966
11,437

37.610

714,O73

DEST

SERVICE

$2,197,4a3

22.495

2.219.974

OTHER

GOVERNMEI{TAL

EUX95

5 4s7,019
629,910

44,703
1,430,774

TOTAL

GOVERI{MENTAL

zulDS

s 521,985

2,838,830

44,703
1,430,714

60.165

4.895.857

896,503
427,461

1,430,174

598.511

3,352,749

2,561,806

57,275

3.245.474

13.t71.4071

13.171.401)

s. 114073

2,219,978

61.275

2,494,531

2,219,974

2,494,531
(3,171.401)

1.543.108

s4395.852

2.719.974

s,2l3l13

2.494.531

s2l61,806

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALIW OF LOIZA
REcoNcr.raroN OF THE GovERNMENTAL FuNDs

BAI.ANCE SHEET To TH€ STAIEMEIVI OF NEI AssEIs
As OFJUNE 30,2011

Fund balances in tovernmental funds

Amounts rcpotted for govenfientol octivities in the Stotement of Net Assets ore
dilferent becduse: S 1,s43,108

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds 22,936,203

Lon8-term liabilities and accrual expenses are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds:

Bonds and notes payable

Compensated absences
Claims andjudgments
Accrued interest
Notes payable CRIM

Net dssets ol govem,nentol octivhies

(9,248,000)
(1,923,38s)

(1,853,11s)
(103,367)

1173,O3tl

s r0t7&413

15



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF I-OiZA
STATEMENT OF REvENuEs, ExpENDtTUREs

AND CHANGES lN FUND BaLA||CE-GoVERNMENTA! FUIDS

FoR THE YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,2011

Revenues:

Property taxes

Municipaltaxes
Sale tax
Construction excess tax

Licenses and permits
lnterest
Rent
Grants and entitlements
Other

Total Revenues

Expendftuaes:

General administration
Public safety
Education, culture and recreation
Publicworks
Community development
Health and welfare
Debt service:

Principal
lnterest

Total expenditures

E(ceis of revenue orrer e,eendhuret

Other financlng source! (usesr:

Operating transfer in
Operating transfer out
Proceed from loan

Total other financing sources

Excess o, revenu€s and other financing
source over (underl expenditures and
other financing sources

GENERAI

IClg

s 1,80s,485

375,593

491,747
203,643

17,20s
3,443

23,375
6,592,s97
2.464.226

12,377.354

1,857,991
930,187

600,297
7,904,212

744,640
7,341,57a

OI}IER
DEBT G{'VERI{MEI'TAL

sE8ylgE fUlgs

5t,127,s24

297,790

2,O57

5s,052,917

TOTAI.

6OVERI{MEI{TAL

rulss

s 2,933,009
375,593
749,571
203,643
t7,205
5,5m

23,375
17,655,574
2.464.226

S18.867.702

8,210,959
989,878
834989

o075,830
184,640

\474,366

573,000
223.537

$ (699,497)

851,571
(851,571)

2.128.000

2.128.000

1,424,503

114,505

5 1813J08

1,3.422.905

sl1.04s.ss1)

701,365
(1s0,206)

735.000

s73,000
223.531

796.537

s 630.834

s8,691

{701,365)

1,421.311 5.062.977

352,968

59,691
234,692

4,167,61.4

$2,744

s (284.780)

91,515

1.393,000

1.484.515

5.341.757 19.567.199

1.286.1s9 1642.674\

Fund balance at beginning of

Fund balance at end of year

240,644 (11,840)

(3.412.009) 2,231.818

s13JzL401) s22]9.sd8

-M,
1,199,735

7,294.796

s2191531

integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF IOIZA
REcoNctLrAroN OFTHE STATEMENT OF REVENUEs, ExpENDtruREs

ANo CHANGES lN FuNo EAtaNcEs OF GoVERNMET\ITA!

FUNDS To THE STATEMENT OF A TNTTIES

FoRTHE YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2011

Net change in fund balances - total governmental tunds

Amounts repotted lot Govemmentol Activities in the Stotefient of Aciivjties orc
different becouse: S 1,428,503

Governmentalfunds repo rt ca pita I outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost ofthose assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. 2,027,O].a

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the statement ofactivities, but do
not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is
not reported as expenditure in Bovernmental (755,045)

Governmental funds report issuance of long-term debt as other financial sources because
provides current financial resources. e,128'0OO)

Governmental payments of long-term debts as expenditures, whereas the payment
reduces the lon8-term obligations in the statement of activities:

Notes and bonds 573,OOo
Note payable CRIM - Law 42 18,838
Note payable CRIM - Digitalization 26,2a7

Change in accruals which do not require the use of current financial resources:
lnterest
Claim andjudgment
Accrued vacations
Advance form CRIM

Chdnges in Net Assets ol covemmentol Activities

1,239
115,000

43,127

sll55.967

11



COMMONWEAI.TH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAIITY OF LOiZA
PRoPIETARY FUND STATEMEIYI oF FINANCIAL PosITIoN

JUNE 30,2011

AssETs

Current Assets:
cash

Property and Equipment

Restricted deposits

OtherAssets

PRoPIEIARYFUND

BRISAS DE LOIZA PRO'ECT

S ss,784

1,274,771

744,951

L6,734

S1-L32246

5 32,772
15.247
47.959

7,905,573
t2.651

1.918.230

1,956,189

{s33.943)

51A12246

UAAILMES AND NEI ASSEIS

Liabilities:
Current liabilities:

Current maturities of mortgage note
Accounts payable and acc(red expenres

Long-term debt liabilities:
Mortgage note, net ofcurrent maturities
Tenants deposits held din trust

Net assets (deficiency)

The accompanying notes are an integralpart ofthese financial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF TO1ZA

STATEMEMI oF AcrvrnEs PRopERTy FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

Revenues:
Rent
Financial

Total revenues

Expenses:

Administrative
Utilities
Operating and maintenance
Taxes and insurance
Depreciation
lnterest

TotalExpenses

Change in het assets

Net assets (deficiency), beginning ofyear

Net assets (deficien.y), and year

BRrsAs DE LofzA PRolEcr

5 403,729
5.237

,r08.366

149,546
5,957

49,224
23,263

L25,946
80,010

473,946

(6s,580)

(468.363)

s1533-Er3)

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financialstatements.

19



COMMONWEAITH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALIW OF [O[ZA
STATEMENT OF CatH Flows PRopntEIARy FUND

FoRTHE YEAR ENDEDJU(E 30, 2011

PRoPERryFUNo

BRrsAs DE [o[za PRorEcr

Cash flows Irom operating activities

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in

net assets to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation
Bad debt expense
lncrease or decrease in:

Other assets

Accounts payable and accrued expense

Net.ash provided by opeEting activities

Cash flow from investing activities:
lnterest deposited on represent account
lncrease in other reserve
Deposits to represent reserve
Purchase of fixed assets

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash tlows from financinS activities:

Mortgage principal payments

Net cash used byfinanaing activities

Net dearease in cash

Cash at beginning ofthe yeal

Cash at ending of the year

t25,946
2,49L

382
{9.730)

53,509

12,0641

{180)
(22,100)

{18.2s3)

142,597)

5(5s,s80)

12a.7$)

{28.718)

(17,806)

73.590

5 55184

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these flnancial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF LOiZA
NorEs To THE FtNANctaL STATEM ENTS

JUNE 30,2011

1. ORGANIZATION

The Municipality of Loiza (the Municipality) is a political and legal entity with full legislative and
administrative faculties in every affair of municipal character, with perpetual succession, existence
and legal personality separate and independent from the governmental of the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico.

Fhe municipal government is comprised of the executive and legislative bodies, which are elected
every four years in the Puerto Rico general elections. The executive power is exercised bythe Mayor
and the legislative power by the Municipal Legislative Body, which has thirteen members.

The Municipality provides the following services to its community: health, public works, education,
public safety. housing, community and social servaces, welfare, culture and recreation, as well as
many other Eeneral and administrative services.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POI.ICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of the Municipality relating to the funds included in the
accompanying basic financial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States ofAmerica applicable to state and localgovernments. Generally accepted accounting
principles for local governments include those principles prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the Ameriaan lnstitute of Certified public Accountants in the
publication entitled Audits of State and Local Governmental Units and by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (when applicable). The more significant policies of the Municipality are described
below.

Reporting entity

A reporting entity consists of the primary government, component units, and other organizations
that are included to ensure that financial statements are not misleadin8. The primary government
of the Municipality consists of all funds and departments that are not legally separate from the
Municipality. For the Municipality of Loiza, these include various services such as poli.e protection,
recreation (includin8 parks), street maintenance and repair, sanitation, and general adminjstrative
services. The operation of each ofthese activities is directly controlled by Municipality's Legislative
Bodythrough the budgetary process.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the Municipality is financially
accountable. The Municipality has no component units.

Government wide and fund financial statements

Basic financial statements include both governments-wide and fund flnancialstatements.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUTYOF LOIZA
NorEs To TBE F[\laflctAl SrartMEurs (CoNnNUED]

lur,rE30,2011

2. SUMMARy OF StGNtFtCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

Government-wide statements

The government-wide financial statements (consists of the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities) these statements report information on all the activjties of the primary
government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities which normally are supported mainly by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues are reported separately from business,type activities. which
rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is
reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary
government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segments are offset by pro8ram revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include a) charges to customers
or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a
given function or se8ment and b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular functjon or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Program-specific capital and operating grant and contributions consist of transactions that are
either mandatory orvoluntary non-exchange transactions with other governments, organizations, or
individuals that restrict the resources for use in a particular program. Capital grants and
contributions consist of capital assets or resources that are restricted for capital purposes - to
purchase, construct or renovate capital assets associated with a specific program. Operating grants
and contributions consist of resources that are required to be used to finance the costs ofoperating
a specific program or can be used either for operating or capital pu.poses of a specific program.
Restricted capital and operatin8 grants and contributions are program revenues because they are
specifically attribLltable to a program are reduce the net expense of that program to the
Municipality. They are reported net ofestimated uncollectible amounts.

Fund fiaancial statements

The fund financial statements segre8ate transactions related to certain functions or activities in
separate funds in order to aid financial maoagement and to demonstrate legal compliance. These
statements present each major fund as a separate column on the fund financial statements; all non-
major funds are aggregated and presented in a sin8le column.

The Municipality reports the following major governmental funds:

A) General Fund

This is the operating fund of the Municipality and accounts for all financial resources, except
those required to be accounted for in another fund.
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COMMONWEAI.TH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALIW OF LOiZA

NoTEs To THt F|NANCTAL STATEMENTS (CoMnNUED)

JUN€ 30,2011

2. SUMMARY OF StGNtatCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOUCtES (CONTTNUED)

B) Debit service fund

The fund accounts for resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on
lonE term general obligation debt ofgovernmentalfunds.

C) Permanent lmprovement Funds

This fund accounts for resources accumulated and payment made under a State Legislative Joint
Resolution for the construction ofcapital projects.

Measurement focus, basis ofacaountint and financial statement prcsentation

The government-wide financial statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, both
government and business like activities, are presented using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accountin8. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met.

The governmental fund financial statements are presented using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are re€ognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Under this method revenues are considered to be
avajlable when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabllities of the current period. For this purpose, the Bovernment considers revenues to be available
ifthey are collected within 60 days ofthe end ofthe current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, except for debt service, compensated absences and claims
and judgments expenditures which are reported when payment is due.

Propertytaxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
consjdered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current
Ilscal period. Only the portion of spe€ial assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period
is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items
are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received bythe government.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989
generally are followed in the government-wide financial statements to the extent that those
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards
8oard. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance fortheir
business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The Eovernment has
elected not to follow subsequent private sectorguidance.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF I.OiZA

NoTEs To THT FINA GIAL STATEMENIS (CoNnNUEo)

,uNE 30, 2011

2. SUMMARY Ot STGNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOUCtES (CONTTNUED)

Measurement focus, basis ofaaaountingand financial statement presentation {continued}

As a general rule the effect of interflnd activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Amounts reported as pro8ram revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3)
capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. lnternally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues, Likewise, general revenues include
alltaxes.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy
to use restricted resources first, than unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Proprietary fund financial statements inchde a statement of net assets, a statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in fund nets, and statements of cash flows for the proprietary fund which
include a low income housing project know as Brisas De Loiza Project.

The Municipality has elected to not apply all statements and interpretation issued by FASB after
November 30, 1989.

Proprietary funds are ac€ounted for using the "economic resources" measurement foaus and the
accrual basis of accountiag. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current of noncurrent)
are include on the statement of net assets. The statement of revenues, expenses and change in
fund net assets present increases (revenues) and decrease (expenses) in total net assets. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are reco8nized in the period in which they are earned while
expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred.

Opeaatin8 revenues in the proprietary fund are those revenues that are generated from the primary
operating of the fund. All other revenues are repo.ted as non-operating revenues. Operating
expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other
expenses are reported as non-operating expenSes.

Cash, aash equivalents, cash with fiscal agent and investment

The Municipality's finance director is responsible for investing available resources. The Municipality
is restrided by law to invest only in savings accounts and certificates of deposit with banks qualified
as a depository of public funds by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department (PRTD) or in instruments of
the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB). The Municipality's policy is to invest any
excess cash in interest bearing deposits with institutions qualified by the PRTD. Earnings from these
funds are recorded in the corresponding fund as interest income.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF LOIZA
NoTEs To THE FtNANctat SIaTEMENTS (CoMflNUED)

JUNE 30,2011

2. SUMMARY OF STGNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

Cash with fiscal agent in the governmental fund consists of unused proceeds from bonds and notes
issued for the acquisition and construction of major capital improvements. Cash with fiscal agent in
the debt service f{rnd represents special additional property tax collections retained by the
Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM) and restricted for the payment of the Municipality,s
debt service, as established by law.

The Municipality considers all investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

lnterfund receivable and payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lendin&/borrowing arrangements outstandinB at
the end ofthe fiscal year are referred to as either due tofrom other funds {i.e., the current portion
of interfund loans) or advances tofrom other funds (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund
loans). lnterfunds receivables and payables between funds within the governmental activities are
eliminated in the statement of net assets.

Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property. plant, equipment, and infrastructure (which is normally
immovable and of value only to the Municipality, such as roads, bridges, streets sidewalks, and
drainage system), are reported in the government-wide financial statements.

Capital assets purchased or acquired are carried at historical €ost or estimated historical cost.
Contributed assets are recorded at fair market value as of the date donated. Additions,
improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are
capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. When
historical cost is not available it ls estimated using historic sales of the year of the acquisition of the
related capital assets.

Depreciation in capital assets is calculated on the straight-line basis
usefullives:

lnfrastructure
Building and building improvement
Furnituae and fixtures
Vehicles and equipment

over the followin8 estimated

25 - 50 years

20 - 50 years

5 - 10 years

5 - 20 years
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COMMONWEAI.TH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALIW OF LOTZA

NorEs To THE FrNANctaL STATEMENTs (CoNINUED)

JUNE 30,2011

2. SUMMARy OF StGNtFtCANT ACCOUNTING pOt-tCtES (CONTTNUED)

Fund balance

During the year, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB 54), which enhanced the usefulness of
fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more
consistently applied. This statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a
hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the Authority is bound to observe constraints
imposed upon the use of resources reported in governmentalfunds.

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB 54, the fund balances amounts are reported as nonspendable
restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned, based on the relative strength of the constraints
that control how specific amounts can be spent, as described follows:

{. NonsEendable - Represent resources that cannot be spent readily with cash or are legally
or contractually required not to be spent, jncluding but not limited to inventories, prepaid
items, lon8-term balances of loans and notes receivable.

Restrided - Represent resources that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated
by constitutional provisions, external resource providers (externally imposed by creditors or
grantors), or through enabling legislation (that is, legislation that creates a new revenue
sources and restrict its use). Effectively, restrictions may be changed or ljfted only with the
consent of resource providers.

Committed - Represent resources used for specjfic purposes, imposed by formal action of
the entity's hi8hest level of decision making authority {governing body through resolutions)
and can only be charged by similar resolutions, no later than the end ofthe fiscal year.

Assiqned - Represent resources intended to be used by the entity for specific purposes but
do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed (generally resolutions
approved by the governing body). lntent can be expressed by the governing body, or by and
official or body to which the governing body delegates authority in conformity with the
bylaws of the Authority. ln governmental funds other than the general fund, assigned fund
balance represents the remaining amount that is not restricted or committed.

lJnassiqned - Represent the residual classification for the entity,s general fund and includes
all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. ln other funds, the
unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit balance resultin8 from overspending
for specific purpose for which amounts had been restricted, committed, or assigned.

+
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COMMONWEAI.TH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAI.ITY OF LOIZA

NoTEs To THE FI ANCIAL STATEMENTS (CoNnNUED)

JUNE 30,2011

2. SUMMARY OF S|GNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG POLtCtES (CONTTNUEO)

Riskfinancing

The Municipality carries insurance to cover casualty, theft, tort claims and other losses. lnsurance
policies are negotiated by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department and costs are allocated among all
the municipalities of Puerto Rico. Cost of insurance allocated to the Municipality and deducted from
the gross property tax collections by the Municipal Revenue Collection Center (the "CRlM") for the
year ended lune 30, 2011 amounted to approximately S113,213. The current insurance policies have

not been cancelled or terminated. The CRIM also deducted approximately 5232,047 for workers
compensation insurance covering all municipal employees.

Compensated absences

Employees accumulate vacation leave at a rate of 2.5 days per month up to maximum of 50 days.

Unpaid vacation time accumulated is fully vested to the employees from the flrst day of work.
Employees accumulate sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month up to a maximum 90 days. ln the
event of employee resignation, the employee is paid for accumulated vacations days up to the
maximum allowed.

separation from employment prior to use of all or part of the sick leave terminates all rights for
compensation, except for employees with ten years or more ofseryice who are entitled to sick leave
pav up to the maximum allowed.

Employees' maximum allowed vacations and vested sick benefits are accounted for in the Statement
of Net Assets.

Post employment benefits

Pursuant various Acts, the Municipality i5 required to cover annually the 3% increase (cost of livin8
allowance) in the retirement plan of it's retires employees. Substantially all of the employees may

become eligible for these benefits of they reach normal retirement to while workin8 for the
Municipality. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, post employment benefits retirees amounted
to 539,148. These benefits are recorded as expenditures when informed by the retirement plan.

use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and

expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Adual results could differ from those estimates.
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COMMONWEAI.TH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF LOIZA
NoTEs To THE FrNANctat STATEMENTS (CoNT|NUED)

JUNE 30,2011

3. PROPERTY TAX

The personal property tax is self assessed by the taxpayer on a return, which is to be filed by May 15
ofeach yearwith the Municipal Revenue Collector Center (the CRIM), a governmentalentity created
by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Real property tax is assessed by the CRIM on each piece of
real state and on each building-

The assessmeat is made as of January 1 of each year and is based on current values for personal
property and on estimated value as of 1957 for real property tax. The tax on personal property
must be paid in full together with the return by May 15. The tax on real property may be paid in
two installments by July 1 and JanuarV 1.

The CRIM is responsible for the billing and collections of real and personal property taxes on behalf
of all the municipalities of Puerto Rico. Before the be8inning of each fiscal year, the CR|M informs
the Municipality of the estimated amount of property tax expected to be collected for the ensuing
flscal year. Throughout the year, the CRIM advances funds to the Municipality based on the initial
estimated collections. The CRIM is requked by law to prepare a settlement statement on a fiscal
year basis, where by a comparison is made between the amounts advanced to the Municipality and
amounts actually collected from taxpayers.

This settlement has to be completed on a preliminary basis not later than three months after fiscal
yeaFend, and a final settlement made not later than six months after year-end. lf the CRIM remits
to the Municipality property tax advances, which are less than the tax actually collected, a

receivable from the CRIM is recorded at lune 30. However, if advances exceed the amount actually
collected by the CRIM, a liability to the CRIM is recorded at June 30.

Residential real property occupied by its owner is exempt by law from the payment of property
taxes on the first S15,00O of the assessed value. For such exempt amounts, the Puerto Rico
Treasury Department assumes payment of the basic tax to the Municipalities, except for property
assessed at less than 53,500 for which no payment is made. As part of Law No. 83 of August 30,
1991, as amended, the exempt amount to be paid by Puerto Rico Treasury Department to the
Municipalities was frozen asoflanuary 1, 1992. ln addition, the lawgrants a tax ex€eption from the
payment of personal property taxes of up to 550,000 of the assessed value to retailers having
annual net sales of less than 5150,000.

The rates are 8.83% for real property and 6.83 for personal property. The composition is as follows:

Basic property
Additional special property - state
Additional special property-municipal
Discounts made by state to tax payer

Real

6.00%
L.O3%

2.@%
._4%,

@%

Personal

4.OO%

L7A%
t25%

<_4Y.>

6.31%



COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF LO1ZA

NOTES TO THE FINANcIAL STATEMENIs (CoNTINUED}

luNE 30,2011

4. VOI.UME OF BUSINESSTAX

The municipal license tax is levied annually based on the volume of business of certain businesses
and industrial organizations that operate in the Municipality. The tax rates are 1.50% for financing
institutions and .50% for the other business institutions. The taxpayers must file a return not later
than April 15 of every year and the tax is payable in two installments, due in July 1 and lanuary 1 of
the followin8 fiscal year. The amount levied could be paid with a five percent (5%) discount if
payment is made on or before the filing date. The Municipality levied and collected during the year
ended lune 30, 2011, 5360,186 corresponding to the following fiscal year volume of business tax.
This amount was recorded as deferred revenue, and is presented as a liability in the accompanying
financialstatements.

5- SALE TAX

Pursuant to an amendment to Puerto Rico lnternal Revenue Code, Act 117 of July 4, 2006, the
Municipal Legislature approved the Ordinance 6, Series 2006 2007 to establish a city tax
contribution, effedive November 1, 2006, to 1.5% over all transactions of sales of goods and
services made on Loiza's boundaries. Accordin8 to the Ordinance, these new resources will be
principally used in the following activities: repairs and improvements of Municipal roads,
infrastructure and sport facilities, construction of curbs and sidewalk, purchases of heaw
equipment.

Municipality of Loiza contraded a service organization to manage the imposition and collection of
the sales tax.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Law Number 80 ofluly, 29, 2007 and effective Auglst 1, 2007, the
citizenship contribution was uniformly established in 1.5%, for all the municipalities in Puerto Rico,

of which 1% will be collected by the municipalities and the remaining .5% will be collected by the
Treasury Department of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. A portion of those funds will be
deposited in the Puerto Rico Governmental Development Bank, as a redemption fund, for financing
capital projects to the municipalities.

6. GRANTSAND ENTITLEMENTS REVENUE

Grants and entitlements revenue consists of contributions received from certain quasi-public
corporations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, such as the Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer
Authority and the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority. Also, the Municipality receives some
subsidies from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico which include, among others, a subsidy for
general operations and for the financing of capital improvements. The intergovernmental revenues
are recorded in the General fund, except for those that are legally restricted for expenditure for
specified purposes which are recorded in other governmentalfunds.

29



COMMONWEAITH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF LO.ZA
NorEs To THE FritAMtAL STATEMENTS (CoNTTNUED)

JUNE 30,2011

7. DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue consists ofthe followings:

Municipal license tax colleded in the fiscalyear
2008-2011 corresponding to the followin8 fiscalyear 5360,186

Portion ofgrants received for which qualifying expenditures
have not been incurred. 67,275

sa2J-461

8. RESTRICIED DEPOSIT

Restricted cash in the business-type activities consists of:

Tenant security deposits
Reserve for replacement
Reserve for taxes and other reserve
Other reserves

s t2,6s7
1L3,425
77,O78

1.397

51a4,9s1

Under the regulatory agreement, Project is required to set aside amounts for the replacement of
property and other Project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD - Restricted Deposits are held in
separate accounts and generally are not available for operating purposes.

Tenant's Security Deposit and its accumulated interest are held in a separate bank savings account
in the name ofthe Project, in compliance with USDA-RD and HLJD requirements. Anyamounts not
returned to the tenant due to lease violations are transferred to the Project's general operating
account.
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9. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity forthe yearended June 30, 2011was as follows:

Balanc€

June30.2010 lncreases
Balance

Oecreases June 30.2011Primary Government

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, notbeingdepreciated:

Land

Capital assets being depreciated:

Suildings, park and courts
Furniture and fixtures
Automobiles and equipment

Total capital assets beingdepre€iated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings, parks and couns
Furniture and fixture

Total

Total depreciablecapital assets, net

Governmental adivities capital assets net

Businesgtype activities:
capital ass€tsnet beingdepre€iated:

Land

Capital assets being depreciated:
Euildingand improvements
Equipment

Less ac€umulated depreciation:
Euilding and improvements and

Total depreciablecapital assets, net

Business activities capital assets, net

s 1.687.516

17,940,442
10,437,350

447,141
1.911.540

30.736,913

(s,s28,7s3)
(3,098,4s8)

(3s0,940)

{1.782.048

{10.760.199)

19.976,114

21.664,230

109.735

3,137,906
298.s26

3,430,432

12.217.7O3)

1.212.729

1.322.464

s229E6-691

s1,485,220
541,798

S 1.687.516

19,426,102
10,979,144

447,147
1.911.S40

32.783.931

15,964,266)

13,342.759)

{383,007)
17.a25,2121

111.515.244)

21.248.687

22.936.203

t@.735

3,14J,157
308.528

3,444,68s

(2.343.6491

1.105.036

1.214.771

s24Jfip14

2,O21.O14

(43s,s13)
(244,301)

132,0671
{43.164)

{755.045)

1.2't1.973

1.2'11.9r3

4,251.

10,002

14,253

{125.946)

1107.693)

{107.693)

suel2Eo
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9. CAPTTAT- ASSETS (CONTTNUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs ofthe Municipality as follows:

Governmental
Activities

S2BG,6s2
47,512

260,2a9
40,881
47,701
31,920

Business-Type

Activities

General administration
Public safety
Public works
Education, culture and recreation
Health, sanitation and welfare
Public relation, tourism and citizen affairs
Housing

Total depreciation expense t755!45

10. LONG-TERM DEBTS

Long-term liability activityfor the year ended June 30, 2011was as follows:

s125,946

s.125r46

Pdmary Govemment
Govehmental activities:

Bonds and notes
Notes Payable CRIM - Law42
Note Payable CRIM loan -

Digitalization

Other long-term debt:
Compensated absences
Amount due to cRlM - 2007{8
Legalsettlement

Total

Business-type activities:
Mort8age payable

Total

Eednning
Balance

5 7,693,000
774,736

40.020
8,511,156

7,923,385
43,127

1.968.11s

72,445,743

Additions

s2,128,000

2,124,000

Reductions

s (s73,000)
(18,838)

126.2a1)
(618,12s)

(ss9,992)

{i43,t27)
(11s.000)

|t.336.244)

Ending
Balance

S 9,248,000
759,298

13,733
10,021,031

Due Within
One Year

s 861,000
8,437

73.133
893,700

1,363,393 800,000

1.853.115 1.853,115

73,237.539 3.546.815

1.967,003

5ua12.186

128,118) 1,938,285 32.112

5?.4C 00 SGl64-962) 51s;L15,824 s3.47s.s27
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10. LONG-TERM DEBTS (COf{TINUED}

Govelnmental activities:

Bonds and notes:

S451,000 series if 1993, payable in annual installments of526,000 to
532.000 until January 1, 2016, interest at 5%. S145,OOO

S100,000 series of 1996, payable in annualinstallments of57,000 to
58,000 untillanuary 1, 2015, interest at 4.5%. 29,000

51,685,000 series of 1999, payable in annual installments of 560,000 to
5150,000 untilluly 1, 2023, interest rangin8 from 5.88% to 8%. 1,285,000

$655,000 series of 2002, payable in annual installments of 520,000 to
555,000 until luly 1, 2026, interest ranging from 5% to 8%. 550,000

5400,000 series of 1997, payable in annual installments of525,000 to
540,000 untilluly 1, 2016, interest at 6.75%. 180,000

S130,000 series of 2004, payable in annual installments of55,000 to
510,000 untilluly 1, 2028. interest ran8in8 from 5.0% to 6.5%. 95,000

5360,000 series of 2010. payable in an installment of $40,000 to 565,000
on July 1, 2017, interest rangjng from 5.0% to 6.5%. 360,000

595,000 series of 2004, payable in annual installments of 53,000 to
57,000 untilJuly 1,2028, interest rangingfrom 5.0%to 6%. 81,000

5455,000 series of 2004, payable in annual installments of510,000 to
535,000 until July 1, 2028, interest ranging from 5.0% to 6.5%. 395,000

5925,000 series of 2005, payable in annual installments of535,000 to
570,000 untilJuly 1, 2024, interest ranging fro,r|, 4.37%to5%. 735,000

5200,000 series of2006, payable in two annual installments of S30,00O
and 535,000 untilJuly 1,2013, interest ranging ltorn 4.23% to 4.73%.

5820,000 series of2007, payable in annual installments of S15,000 to
570,000 until July 1, 2032, interest ranging from 3s3% to 7.5%.

65,000

78s,000
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10. IoNG-TERM DEBTS (CONTTNUED)

Governmental activities:

Bonds and notes:

51,155,000 series of2008, payable in annualinstallments of5100,000 to
5160,000 untilluly 1,2017, interest ranging from3.93% to7.5%. 5 89O,OOO

5900,000 series of 2008, payable in annual installments of5155,000 to
S 180,000 until J u ly 1, 2014, interest ranging fro m 7 .0o/o to 7 .5%. 645,000

S135,000 series of 2008. payable in annual installments of55,000 to
520,000 until luly 1, 2023, interest ranging from 5.40%to 7.5oA. 125,000

Sit45,00O series of 2008, payable in annual installments of590,000 to
5105,000 until July 1, 2013, interest ranging from 4.75% to 7.5%. 290,000

5935,000 series of2011payable in annual installments ofS115,000to
5155,000 until July 1, 2015 interest at 7.0% due semiannually. 825,000

S1,033,000 specialobligation note series 2011, payable in month
installments ranging from 5120,000 to S185,000 until July 1, 2017 interest
at 7.5% due semiannually. 1,033,000

5735,000 specialobligation bonds series 2010, payable in annual
installments of ranging from 510,000 to 565,000 until July 1, 2035 interest
at 7% due semiannually. 735.000

Total bonds and notes S 9,248.000

Business type-activities:

Two mortgage notes collateralized with land and building, payable in

monthly installment of54,802 and S1,312, including interest at an annual
rate ofg% 6.87% throu8h December 2051. 1.938.255

51r-186.285
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10. I.ONG-IERM DEBTS (CONTINUED)

The annual debt service requirements to maturity bonds and notes payables ofJune 30, 2011 are as

follows:

Governmental -type Activities:

Year ended lune 30 Prinaioal
Aggregate
Pavment

5 349,031 $ 1,210,031
531,518 1,459,518
469,531 L,4L8,53L
404,944 L,320p44
347,011 t,722,OLr

1,1t2,937 3,444,937

s81,687 2,033,687

lnterest

20L2
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017-2021
2022-2026
2021-203L
2032-2036

$ 861,000
928,000
949,000
915,000
775,000

2,332,000
1,452.000

535,000

400.000

59248p00

Busin€ss-type activities:

Two mortgage notes are payable in monthly installments of 54,802 and 51,310 including
interest at an annual rate of 9% and 6.857% through December 2051.

Mortgage payable consist of permanent residence loans provided by USDA-Rural Development.
The land and building ofthe Project collateralized the mortgage note.

Mortgage notes payable mature as follows:

250,192 885,192

69.712 469,712

54J15p63 513363t63

Principal

5 32,112
35,706
34,975
42,545
46,444

1.141.903

5L938285

Year ended June 30

2012
2013
20t4
20L5
20L5
Thereafter
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10. LONG-TERM DEBTS (CONnNUED)

Note payable - CRIM l-aw 42

Note payable of 5778,136 represents a repayment agreement with GDB and cRlM to repay the
excess of property taxes advances from fiscalyears up to 2001. TheCR|Mwill retain the principal

and interest from the property taxes advances. The amounts retained by CRIM will be remitted to
GDB on July 1 of each yeaa through 2032. The repayment agreement is payable in semi-annual

aggregate principal installments of 533,348 includin8 an interest rate of 5.187%.

Year ended June 30

Note payable -CRIM (l"lMS)

ln 2001 the Municipality entered into a financing agreement with the cRlM in the amount of
5210,880 for the payment of the Municipality's share in the cost of a management information
system (LIMS) acquired by the CRIM for the management of taxpayer's properties located in Puerto
Rico. The note is payable in semiannual installments of S14,142, including interest of 5.95% and due

on November 28, 2011. Amount is financed with unrestricted funds through withholdings from the
advances of property tax and amounts of the municipal equalization fund send to the Municipality
by the CRIM. Debt service requirements in future years are as follows:

2012
20L3
2014
2015

2016
2017-202t
2022-2026
2027-203r
2032

2012

Princioal

s 18,837
20,021
21,279
22,616
24,O37

144,828
196,415
266,379

63,724

u13,138

lnterest

s 47,860
46,616
45,478
44,081
42,660

188,659

t31,012
67,LOa

s922,501

Total

S 66,697
66,697

66,691
66,691
66,697

333,487

*3,447
333,447

66,697

s1t100643

Principal

$13,733

lnterest

409

Total

5t4,t42
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11. RET|REMENT SYSTEM

Delined Benefit Pension Plan

The Employees' Retirement System of the Commonwealth and its instrumentalities (the

"Retirement System"), created pursuant to Act. No.447 of May 15, 1951, as amended, is a cost-

sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan sponsored by, and reported as a component
unit of the Commonwealth. All reBular employees of the Municipality hired before January 1, 2000

and under 55 years of age at the date of employment became members of the Retirement System

as a condition to their employment. No benefits are payable if the participant receives a refund of
his/her accumulated contributions.

The Retirement System provides retirement, death and disability benefits pursuant to legislation
enacted by the Commonwealth's legislature. Retirement benefits depend upon age at retirement
and the number of years of creditable service. Benefits vest after ten years of plan participation.

Disability benefits are available to members for occupational and non-occupational disabilities.
However, a member must have at least ten years of service to receive non-occupational disability
benefits.

Members who have attained at least 55 years of age and have completed at least 25 years of
creditable service or members who have attained 58 years of age and have completed ten years of
creditable service are entitled to an annual benefit, payable monthly for life. The amount of the
annuity shall be one and one-half percent of the average compensation, as defined, multiplied by

the number of years of creditable service up to twenty years, plus two percent of the average

compensation, as defined, multiplied by the number of years of creditable service in excess of 20

years. ln no case will the annuity be less than 5200 per month.

Participants who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to receive the
Merit Annuity. Participants who have not attained 55 years of age will receive 55 percent of the
average compensation, as defined; otherwise they will receive 75 percent of the average

compensation, as defined.

Commonwealth legislation requires employees to contribute 5.775% for the first 5550 of thek
monthly gross salary and 8.275% for the excess over 5550 of monthly gross salary. The Municipality

is required bythe same statute to contribute 9.275% ofthe participant's gross salary.
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11, RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Defi ned contribution Plan

The Legislature of the Commonwealth enacted Act No. 305 on September 24, 1999, which amends
Act No. 447 to establish, among others, a defined contribution savings plan program (the
"Program") to be administered by the Retirement System. All regular employees hired for the first
time on or afterJanuary 1, 2000 and former employees who participated in the defined benefit
pension plan and are rehired on or after January 1, 2000 become members of a Program as a

condition to their employment received a refund oftheir contributions. ln addition, employeeswho
at December 31, 1999 were participants of the defined pension plan, had the option, up to March
31, 2000, to irrevocably transfer their prior contributions to the defined benefit pension plan plus

interestthereon to the Pro8ram.

Act No. 305 requires employees to contribute 8.275% of their monthly Bross salary to the Program.

Employees may elect to increase their contribution up to 10% of their monthly gross salary.
Employee contributions are credited to his/her individual account established under the Program.

Participants have three options to invest their contributions to the Program. lnvestment income is

credited to the participant's account semi-annually.

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF LO'ZA

NoTEs To THE FrNANcral STATEMENTS (CoNnNuEo)

JUNE30,20U

The Municipality is required by Act No. 305 to contribute 9.275% of the participant's gross salary.

The Retirement System will use these contributions to increase its asset level and reduce the
unfunded status ofthe defined benefit pension plan.

Total employees and employer contributions to the above mentioned plans during the year ended
June 30, 2011 amounted to approximately 5294,448 and 5334,884, respectively. This amount
represented the required contribution forthe correspondingyear.

Additional information on the Retirement System is provided in its financial statements for the year

ended June 30, 2011, a copy ofwhich can be obtained from the Retirement System.

Upon retirement, the balance in the participant's account will be used to purchase an annuity
contract, which will provide for a monthly benefit during the participant's life and 50% of such

benefit to the participant's spouse in case of the participant's death- Participants with a balance of
510,000 or less at retirement will receive a lump-sum payment. In case of death, the balance in the
participant's account will be paid in a lump-sum to his/her beneficiaries. Participants have the
option of a lump-sum or purchasing an annuity contract in case of permanent disability.
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12. CONTINGENCIE5

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by

grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, includin8 amounts already collected, may constitute a

Iiability ofthe applicable funds. Theamount, ifany, of the expend itu res which may be disallowed by

the grantor cannot be determined at this time, althou8h the Municipality expects such amounts, if
any, to be immaterial.

The Municipality is defendant and/or codefendant in several litigations arising out of the normal

Municipality's operations. Most of the cases are covered by insurance. Management, after

consultation with legal counsel is of the opinion that the ultimate liability, in excess of insurance

coverage, if any, resulting from such pending litigations will not have a material adverse effect on

the M unicipaliVs fi na ncial positio n .
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPAUTY OF I,O1ZA

SofiDUt E OF EUD6ETARY CoMpaRlsoN
FoR THE YEAR EI'IDEDJUNE 30,2ou

Revenues:
Taxes:

Propertytaxes
Municipaltax
Sales tax
Construction excise tar

Licenses and permits
lnterest
Rent

Grants and entitlements
Other

Totalrevenu€s

Expenditures:
Genera I adm in istration
Public safety
Education, culture and

recreational
Public relation, tourism and
citizens affairs

Public works and sanitation
Health, sanitatjon and welfare

Totalexpenditures

Excess of expenditures over
revenues

GENERAL FUNO

AMMENDEO

BUDGET ACTUAL

5 2,376,072 S 1,99G,361
6(Jo,737 409,964
847,996 436,sa7
300,000 203,643

5,000 L7,205
20,000 4,808
25,200 23,375

6,302,943 6,444,222
1,054,000 3,564.226

11.531.348 13,100.391

6,073,694 7,055,580
1,t44,571 949,907

573,285 510,153

764,090 797,43t
1,545,969 2,004,598
1.495,194 1.575.043

11.596.803 72.992.722

5 165455) S 1o7i69

VARIANCE

wlTH FINAL BUOGET

FAVORABTE

IUNFAVORABTE)

s 137s,771)
(190,173)

(411,409)
(96,3s7)

l,1.2,2os)

{1s,192)
(1,82s)

741,219
2.570,226

1.559.043

(981,886)

L94,664

{36,878)

i33,3471

1458,6291
179.8491

{1.395,919)

S 1Jif,24

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

5 2,37,,oi2
6@,737
847,996
300,000

5,000
20,000
2s,200

6,302,943
1,054.000

11.531,348

6,013,694
1,144,571

573,2a5

764,090
1,545,959
7,495,t94

11.595.803

s _.15s155)
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1. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The Municipality forrows these procedures in estabrishing the budgetary data refrected in thefinancialstatements:

2)

1) Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management controt
the General Fund. Formal bud8etary integration is not employed
becauseeffective budgetarycontrol is alternativelyachievedthrough
requirements provisions,

On or before May 15, the Mayor submits to the Municipal Legislative Body a proposed operating
budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July i. ftre opeiating Ludget incluOes
proposed expenditures and the means forfinancing them.

Priorto June 13, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

The Municipal Legjslative Body approves, by ordinance budget approprlations by functional
basis. The Mayor is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between jepartments within any
fund; however, any revisjons that alter the total appropriations of any fund must be approveO
by the Municipal Legislative Body.

unused appropriations for the annual budgeted funds lapse at the end ofthe year.

The budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting. The actuar resurts of operations,
presented in the Statement of Revenues and Expenditures _ Budget and Actual General Fund, is
in conformity with the budgetary accounting of the Municipalit for a better comparison with
the budget information.

The presentation of the budgetary data excludes other appropriations such as capitaj projects,
debt seNice and special revenue funds because projects are funded on a mult;year nature,
generally requiring several years to complete or effective budgetary control is alternativery
achieved through general obligation bond indentures and legal and coniractual grant agreement
provisions.

device during the year for
for special revenue funds
legal and contractual grant

3)

4)

s)
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- 2. RECONCILIATION OF GAAP TO BUDGETARY BASIS

Adjustments necessary to reconcire the revenues and expenditures of the Generar Fund at the endofthe year, from the generally accepted accounting principles to budgetary basis, are as tollows:

Excess ofexpenditures over revenues, budgetary basis S 107,669

Proceed from loan not included in budget

Adjustments to accounts payable and accrued expenses to
adjust expenses from budgetary basis to modified accrual
basis (1,395,913)

adiustments to accounts receivable 1,569,043

Other adjustments (40,18G)

Excess ofrevenues and other financialsources under
expenditure and other fi nancial sources per generally
accepted accounting princ,ple S 240.608
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COMMONWEAI.TII OF PUERTO RICO
MUNTCTPAUW OF IOaZA

SCHEDULE OF ExpENotruREs OF FEDEMLAwaRDs
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

NUMBER DISBURSEMENT

IJS DeDartment ot Housinrand Urban
Develooment
Passed through:

M u n icipa I Service Administration:
Community Development Block Grant 14.228 51,496,959Municipality of San Juan Housing Opportunities
for Persons with A|DS (HOPWA) t4.24I t},35g

Puerto Rico Department of Family:
Shelter Plus Care 14.238 6j,I7g
ARRA-Homeless prevention and Rapid

Re,Housing program 1.4.262 4ga,671
Direct Program:

Section 8 - Housingchoice Vouchers 74.8jf 64,539
2.t97.707

IJS Department of Health and Human Services
Passed throuEh:

PR Department of Family:
Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 ta:.,446
ARRA-Child Care and Development Block 6rant 93.713 58.64a

24t.094

US Depaftment of Aadculfure
Passed through:

PR Department of Education:
Child and Adult Food program 10.558 41,,gO7

4L.907

US Detartment of Homeland and Securitv
Passed through:

PR Offce of Mana8ement and Budget (GAR):
Public Assistance Grant 97.06:. 97,469

97,469
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNtCtPAUW oF t-oizA

NoTEs To SCHEDULE OF ExpENDtruREs OF FEoERA| Awa[Ds
JUNE 30,2011

_ 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

The accompanying schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of- Municipality of Loiza and is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, amountspresented in the accompanying schedule agree to amounts presented in the baslc fi na ncial statements.
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GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

47



6"^A"%. Aa*-,fg,ra*
Certilied Public A.countant MEMBER:

American lnstitute oI Certified pubtic A.countants

REPORT ON INTERNAI. CONTROI. OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPI.IANCEAND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE wlTH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To The Honorable MayorAnd
Municipal Legislative Body

Municipality of Loiza
Loiza, Puerto Rico

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Municipality of Loiza, puerto Rico, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the Municipality of Loiza, puerto Rico,s basic financiat
statements and have issued our report thereon dated Febtuaty 26,2072. Others auditors auditedthe financial statements of the Brisas de toiza project, as described in our repon oa
Municipality of Loiza, puerto Rico'financiar statements. This report does not include the resultsof the other auditors, testing of internal control over financial reporting of compliance and
other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors. The rep;rt on basic financial
statements was qualified, because the accounting records of Municipality related to accountspayable, interfund transactions and expenses classifications we.e not adequate. Except as
discussed in the preceding sentence, we conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the united states of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Goyerrment Auditing Stdndords, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States

lntehal Control Over Financial Reoortine

In planning and performing our audi! we considered Municipality of Loiza, puerto Rico,s internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financiel statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of Municipality of Loiza, pueno Rico,s internal control over iinancial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Municipality of toiza, puerto
Rico's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in intenol control exists when the design or operation of a contror does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, toprevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A /roteriol weoiness is a deficlency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internar contror such that there is a reasonabre possrbirity that a
material misstatement of the entity,s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROI, OVER FINANCIAI. REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Our consideration of internal control over financjal reporting was for the limited purpose describedin the first paragraph of this section and was not designei to ia"*it, 
"ii 

iuJi.,"*as in internatcontaol over flnancial reportinS that miSht be deficiencies, slgniricant deficiencies, or materialweaknesses we identified certain deficiencies in internar cont-t oJ",. nna n.i"i ."p'orting, aescribed inthe accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that we .onriJ". to O! .ut".i"t *""t n"r.in internal control overfinancial reporting. Findin8s 1_1Oto2-10.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Municipality of Loiza, puerto Rico,sfihancial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its comptiance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with whichcould have a direct and material effect on the determinat]on of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of ouraudil and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instancesof noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported ordet Government Auditing
Stordords and which are described jn the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs asitems 1-10 to 2-10.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of manaSement, City Council, others withinthe entity, and federar awarding agencies and pass-through entit]es and is not intenoed to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

February 26, 2072
Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico

license No. 1339
Expires December 1, 2013

The stamp No. t3054 ofthe puerto Rico
Society ofCertified public Accountants was
affixed to the original ofthis report.

CAELOS E. DIAZ NEGH'
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REqUTREMENTS
APPUCABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPI.IANCE

IN ACCORDANCE WITH OM8 CIRCUI.AR A-133
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€"rr*"fr,. Aa*.,,[g*d-
Certifi ed Publi. Accountant MEMBER:

American Institute of Certified pubtic Accountants

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUTREMENTS
APPI.ICABI.E TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR 4.133

To The Honorable MayorAnd
Municipal Ledslative Body

Municipality Of Loiza
loiza, Puerto Rico

Comoliance

We have audited the compliance of Municipality of Loiza, puefto Rico, with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U. S. Ofice of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular 4-133
Complionce Supplemerf that are applicable to each of jts major federal programs for the year ended
lune 30, 2011. Municipalities of toiza, puerto Rico,s major federal programs are identified in the
summarV of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, re8ulations, contracts, and grants applicable to
each of its major federal pro8rams is the responsibility of Municipality of ioiza, puerto Rico,s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Municipality of Loiza, puerto Rico,s
compliance based on our audit.

[4unicipality of Loiza, puerto Rico' basic financial statements include the operations of Brisas de toiza
Project, which expensed 52,412,23rintederar awards which is not incruded in the schedure during the
year ended June 30, 2011. our audit descaibed below did not include the operations of Brisas de Loiza
Project because Municipality of toiza, puerto Rico enga8ed other auditors to perform an audit in
accordance with OMB A-133.

we conducted our audit of compriance in accordance with auditing standards genera[y accepted in
the united States of America; the standards appricabre to financiar audits contained in Government
Auditing stondotds, issued by the comptroler Generar of the r..rnited states; and oMB circurar 4,133,
Audits oI Stotes, Locol Govemments, ond Non-pbIit Orgonizotions. Those standards and OMB
circular 4-133 require that we pran and perform the audit to obtain reasonabre assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit incrudes examrnrng, on atest basis, evidence about Municipality of toiza, puerto Rico,s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedtjres as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit
does not provide a legal determination of Municjpality of Loiza, puerto Rico,s compliance with those
requirements.
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUTREMENTS APPI.ICABTE (CONTINUED)

As describe in items 4,11 and 6-11 in the accompanying schedule of findings and questjoned costs,Munlcipality of toiza did not compry with requirement; re8arding Aaivitiel Alowed or unaflowed,Allowable cost/ cost principres, period of Avairabirity and e-ro.u.".munt. sr.p"nion and Debarmentthat are.applicable to child care Development Block Grants and Homelessness prevention and Rapid
Re-housing Program (HpRp) (Recovery Act Funded). compriance with ,rah ."qrir"r"nt, i, n"."arrryin our opinion, for Municipality of Loiza to comply with the requirements afpticabte the theseproSram.

ln our opinion, except for the noncompliance describe in the proceed,ng paragraph, Municipality of
Loiza, Puerto Rico, compried, in aI materiar respects, with the requiremenis refeired to above that are
applicable to each of its major federar programs for the year ended rune 30, 2011. The resurts of our
auditing procedures arso disclosed other instances of noncompriance with those requirements, which is
required to be reported in accordance with oMB circurar a-133 and which are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 3 11 and 5_11.

lnternal Control Over Comoliance

Management of Municipality of Loiza, puerto Rico, is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
Brants applicable to federal programs. rn planning and performing ou; audit, we considered
Municipality of toiza, puerto Rico's internal control over compliance wittthe requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determane our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A_133, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the erfectiveness of Municiparity of Loiza, puerto Rico's internar contror over
compliance.

our consideration of internar contror over compriance was for the rimited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internar control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses and
therefore, there can be no assurance that all def,cjencies, significant deficiencies or material
weakness has been identifies. However, as discussed below we identified certain deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that be considered to be material weakness and other deficiencies
that we considered to be significant deficiencies.

A deJiciency in internor contror over compriorce exists when the design or operation of a contror over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performlng their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. a mote ol wedkness in intehdl control over
complidnce isa deficiency, or combination ofdeficiencies, in internarcontrorover compriance, such that
there is a reasonable possibirity that materiar noncompriance with a type of compriance requirement of
a federal program wirr not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timer; basis. we considered
the deficiency in internar contror over compriance described in the accompanying schedure of findings
and questioned cost as items 4-11 and 6-11 to be material weakness.
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REPORT ON COMPI,IANCE w|TH REQUIREMENTS APPTICABTE (CONTINUED)

A significant deficiency is internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federalpro8ram that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enou8h to merit attention by those charged with goveanance. we consiJer the deficienciesin internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findin8s andquestioned costs as items 3-11 and 5-11 to be significant deficiencies.

Municipality of toiza, puerto Rico/s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not aud,t Municipatity of Loiza,
Puerto Rico's responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Municipal Legislature,
others within the entity, federal awarding agenc,es, and pass_through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone otherthan these specified parti;s.

Febtuary 26, 2012
Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico

License No. 1339
Expire December 1,2013

The stamp No. E3055 ofthe puerto Rico
Society of Certified Public Accountants
was affixed to the originalofthis report.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPAI.ITY OF [O1ZA

SCHEDUIE OF FlNDtNes AND euEsIoNEo CosTs
FoRTHE YEAR ENDED IuNc 30,2O1t
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COMMONWEAI.III OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPAUTY OF IOIZA

SCHEoULE OF FtNDtNGsAND quEsItoNEo CosTs
FoR THE YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,2OU

SECIION I.SUMMARY OFAUDITOf,TS RESULTS

Type ofaudito/s report issued

_ lnterna I control over fina ncia I reporting:

Fiaancial Statements

Oualified

. Materialweakness identified? _Lyes no
Signif icant def iciency identif ied

that is not considered to be material weaknesses? Ves X no

- Noncompliance materialto financialstatement noted? _ Lyes no

Fede.al Awards

lnternal control over majorprograms:

Material weakness identifi ed?
. siSnificant deficiency identified that are not considered --x-yes 

-noto be material weakness Lyes no

Type ofaudito/s report issued on compliance for
major programs 

eualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with section 510(a) of

- CircularA-133 _Lyes no

ldentification of major programs:

CFA Number(sl Name of Federal pro$am

_ 74.224 Community Development
Block Grants

_ 93.S7S Child Care Development
Block Grants

_ 14.257 Homelessness prevention

and Rapid Re-Housing
(ARRA)

_ oollarthreshold used to distinguish between type A
and type B programs: 

S3OO,OOO

_ Audit qualified as low-risk audited? yes x no
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPATITY OF TOIZA

SCHEDULE Oa FtNDtNGsAND quEsTtoNEo CosTs
FoR THE YIAR ENDED IUNE 30,2ou

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINOINGS

Finding No.01-11 - General Ledger

The Municipality does not have the account;ng practices, policies or internal controls in place to provide
for the preparation of financiar statements, on a timery basis, in accordance with accounting principres
generally accepted in the United States of America {,,generally accepted accounting principles,,). The
accounting system does not provide for a self balancing set of accounts for each fund operated by the
Municipality, recording cash and other financial resources, to'ether with all related assets, liabilities,
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances. Therefore, the financial statements must be
prepared using financial information obtained from various departments and accounting records. The
records are not integrated, and do not follow a double entry system (debit credits). As a result, the
records required si8nificant adjustments in order to present the financial position and results of
operations ofthe Municiparity in conformity with accountinS principres generafly accepted in the united
States ofAmerica.

The continued failuae to have an adequate accounting system prevents the Municipality from having
current, accurate and reliabre financiar reports and information necessary for management to take
efficient and effective actions, incruding corrective actions when prans and objectives are not being met.

Recommendation

The Municipality should adopt and implement a plan to convert its accounting system to an integrated
system that would allow for the monthly closing of the general ledger, as well as the preparation of
year-end financiarstatements in accordance with accounting principres genera y accepted in the united
States ofAmerica.

This plan should provide for:

Assessment of the financial accounting and reporting needs in order to take the
meet the flnancial reporting requirements of GASB Statements No. 34.

necessary Steps to

b. The implementation of a double entry accounting system, the integration of all subsidiary ledgers
and the reconciliation with the records maintained forthe federalfunds

The preparation of periodic financial reports to be submitted to the Finance Director and all other
interested entities.

d. Adequate trainin8 of all accountin8 personnel to improve the understanding of the system and to
Promote operational elf ciency.

Reconciliation of financial records with the reports prepared and submitted to the federal
government.

e.
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SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINOINGS

Finding No.02-11 - Budter

The Municipality's system of internal control relatin8 to the Budgeting firnction does not adequately
prevent operating mana8ement from incurring expenditures in excess ofthe rever offunds appropriated
and available. The Municiparity crosed rts fiscar year ended June 30, 2011 with an unrese,ed fund
balance deficlency in the general fund approximately 53,171,401.

This occirrs because the budgeting system does not refrect actuar avairabre revenues and therefore
cannot prevent the obligation of expenditures for which current resources wi not be avairabre.

Article 8.004 (b) on the Municipalities Law establishes that the trunicipality cannot obligate or spend
funds in excess of the appropriations or the ensuin8 fiscal year. tn addition, accordinB to Chapter tV,
Section 17, of the basic Standards, the responsibility of oversight to prevent deficjts in any municipal
fund rest with the Finance Director.

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPAI.ITY OF LOiZA

ScHEDULE OF FINDINGsAND QUESTIoNGD cosTs
FoR THI YEAR ENoED JUNE 30,2ou

The continued occurrence of this situation could result in the eventual reduction of elimination of
municipal serviaes since future revenues will need o be used to pay for accumulated liabilities.

Reaomnendation

The Municipality should revise and amend the budget as current information related to collections of
budgeted revenues became available.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPAI.ITY OF I.OIZA

ScHEoULE OF FtNDTNGsAND euEsTtoNED CosTs (CoNTTNuED)

FoR THE YEAR ENDED.IUilE 30,2Ou

SECTION III - FEDERALAWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Finding No.3-11- Procurement and Suspension and Debarment

Federal Program

CFDA- 14.228 Community Development Block Grant

Compliance requi.ement:

Procurement and Suspension and Debarment

CateSory:

Compliance and lnternal Control

Condition:

As part of our audit procedures we examined g disbursements to test the compliance with the
Procurement and suspension and Debarment requirement for community Development Block Grant
program. ln 8 of the 8 disbursements amounting 51,001,248 the Municipality did not comply with
Suspension and Debarment requirement.

Crite.ia:

Suspenslon and Debarment:

2 CFR part 180 states that non-federal entities are prohibited from contracting with or making
subawards under covered transactions to parties that are suspended or debarred or whose principals
are suspended or debarred. Covered transactions include those procurement contracts for goods and
services awarded under a nonprocurement transaction (e.g., grant or cooperative agreement) that are
expected to equal or exceed 525,000 or meet certain other specified criteria. CFR section 1gO.220 ofthe
government-wide nonprocurement debarment and suspension Buidance contains those additional
limited circumstances. AII nonprocurement transactions (i.e., subawards to subrecipients), irrespective
ofaward amount, are considered covered transactions.

When a non-federal entity enters into a covered transaction with an entity at a lower tier, the non_
federal entity must verify that the entity is not suspended or debarred or otherwise excluded. This
verification may be accomplished by checking the Excluded parties List System (EpLs) maintained by the
General Services Administration (GSA), collecting a certification from the entity, or adding a clause or
condition to the covered transaction with that entity.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

s€,,",*o.r,,y"'J':[jlf,:j-::11,,,,.o^,,,,o,
FoR THE YEAa ENDED JUNE 30, 2OI1

_ SECTION III. . FEDERALAWARDS FINDINGS AND qUESTTONED COSTS (CONTINUEO)

Findint No.3-11- pro.urement and Suspension and Debarment (CONTTNUED)

Effect:

_ The Municipality could be exposed to administrative action by the grantor.

_ 
Questioned aost:

None

_ Recommendation:

we recommend that the Municipality establishes an adequate internal control system to ascertain
_ compliance with the Suspension and Debarment requirement.
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COMMONWEAI-TH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPAI.IW OF LOiZA

ScHEDUtE OF FtNotNcs AND euEsnoNED CosTs (CoNIlNUEo)
FoR THE YIAR ENoEDIuNE 30,2o1I

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Finding No. 4-11 - Disbursement Test

Federal Program

CFDA- 93.575 Child Care and Development Btock Grant

Compliance requirement:

Activities Allowed or Unallowed
Allowable Cost/Cost Principle
Period ofAvailability
Procurement,Suspension and Debarment

Category:

Compliance and lnternal Control

Condition:

During our examination, we selected 19 disbursements to test Activities Allowed or Unallowed,
Allowable Cost/Cost Principle, period of Availability and procurement, Suspension and Debarment
requirements. For seven of nineteen disbursements amounting S44,g7O.Oj we were unable to test
compliance sinse the supporting document for disbursements were not provided to us for examinations.

Cdteria:

Activities Allowable o. Unallowed:
Period of Av.ilability:

A-102 Common Rule and 2 CFR section 215.28 states that federal awards generally specify a time period
during which the non-federal entity may use the federal funds. Where a funding period is specified, a
non-federal entity may charge to the award only costs resulting from obligations incurred during the
funding period and any pre-award costs authorized by the federal program. Also, if authorized by the
federal program, unobligated balances may be carried over and charged for obligations of a subsequent
funding period. Obligation means the amounts of orders placed; contracts and subgrants awarded;
goods and services received; and similar transactions durin8 a given period that will require payment by
the non-federal entity during the same or a future period.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPAI,ITY OF TOiZA

ScHEDULE OF FtNDTNGsAND euEsIloNEo Cosls (CoNnNUED)

FoR THE YEAR ENDEo JUNE 30,2011

We recommend that the Municipality establishes an adequate internal control system to ascertain
compliance with the Reportin8 requirement.

SECTION III. - FEDERAI. AWARDS FINOINGSAND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONNNUED}

Findint No, 4-11 - Oisbursement Test (CONTTNUED)

Procurement:

state, and Bovernmentalsubrecipients ofstates, shourd use the same state poricies and procedures used
for procurement from non-federal funds. They arso shourd ensure that every purchase order or other
contract includes any clauses required by federal statutes and executive orders and their implementing
regulations. Local governments and lndian tr,bal governments that are not subrecipients of states
should use their own procurement procedures provided they conform to appricabre federar law and
regulations and standards identified in the 4-102 Common Rule (Gov. Doc. No. 10).

Suspension and Debarment:

2 CFR part 180 states that non-federal entities are prohibited from contracting with or making
subawards under covered transactions to parties that are suspended or debarred or whose princlpals
are suspended or debarred. Covered transactions include those procurement contracts for goods and
services awarded under a nonprocurement transaction (e.g., grant or cooperative agreement)that are
expected to equal or exceed 525,000 or meet certain other specified criteria. CFR Section 1g0.220 of
the government_wide nonprocurement debarment and suspension guidance contains those additional
limited circumstances. All nonprocurement transactions (i.e., subawards to subrecipients), irrespective
of award amount, are considered covered transactions. When a non-federal entity enters into a
covered transaction with an entity at a lower tier, the non-federal entity must verity that the entity is
not suspended or debarred or otherwise excluded. This verification may be accompljshed by checking
the Excluded Parties tist System (EpLs) maintained by the General Services Administration (GSA),
collecting a certitication from the entity, or adding a clause or condition to the covered transaction with
that entity.

Effect:

The Municipality could be exposed to administrative action by the grantor_

Questioned cost:

S 44,87o.o7

Recommendation:
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COMMONWEAI.TH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAI.IIY OF tOiZA
ScHEoULE Or FtNotNGsAND quEsnoNEo Co$s (CoNTtNUEo)

FoR THE YEAR ENDEoJUNE 30,2011

SECTION III - FEOERALAWARD FINDINGSANO qUESTIONED COSTS

FindingNo.5-11-Reporting

Federal Program

CFDA - 93.575 Child Care Development Block Grant

Complianae requirement:

Eligibility

Category:

Compliance and lnternal Control

Condition:

During our examination, we selected 6 participants' file to test eligibjlity requirement. One of the file
did not contain the clinic history and physical examination documents. ln additlon the flle did not
contain the income computation sheet to determine ifdoes not exceed 85 percent of median income.

Criteria:

(45 CFR sections 98.20(a), 98.80(f), 98.42 and 98.43 establish that children must be under age 13 (or up
to age 19, if incapable of self care or under court supervision), who reside with a family whose income
does not exceed 85 percent of State/territorial/tribal median income for a family of the same size, and
reside with a parent (or parents) who is working or attending a job-training or education program; or are
in need of, or are receiving, protective services. Tribes may elect to use State or tribal median income.
lead Agencies shall establish a sliding fee scale, based on family size, income, and other appropriate
factort that provides for cost sharing by families that receive CCDF child care services. Lead Agencies
may exempt families below the poverty line from making copayments and shall establish a payment rate
schedule for child care providers caring for subsidized children.

Effed:

The Municipality could be exposed to administrative action bythe grantor.
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COMMONWEAI.TH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAI-ITY OF LOiZA

SCHEDUIE OF FTNDTNG5 AND QUE5T|oNED cosIs (coNn uED)

FoR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

_ sEcTloN lll. - FEDERALAWARDS FINOINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

_ 
Findihg No.5-11 - Elisibility (CONTINUED)

Questioned cost:

- Non"

- Recommendation:

We recommend that the Municipality establishes an adequate internal control system to ascertain

- 
compliance with the EliSibility requirement.

63



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF LO,ZA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTPNED COsIS (CONNNUEO)

FOR THE YEAR ENDEOJUNE 30,2011

SECNON III. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGSAND QUESTIONED COSTS

Finding No. G1l - DisbuBement Test

Federal Program

CFDA-14.257 Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-housing Program (HPRP) {RecoveryAct Funded)

Compliance requirement:

Activities Allowed or Unallowed
Allowable cost/Cost PrinciPle

Period ofAvailability

Category:

Compliance and lnternal Control

condition:

During our examination, we selected 21

Allowable Cost/cost Principle and Period

amounting S1,088.71 we were unable to
provided to us for examination.

Cdteria:

disbursements to test Activities Allowed or Unallowed,

of Availability requirements. Four of 21 disbursements

test compliance since the supportin8 document were not

Activities Allowable or unallowed:

Period oI Availability:

2 CFR section 213.28 and A-102 Common RUle state that federal awards Eenerally specii/ a time period

during which the non_federal entity may use the federal funds Where a fundinB period is specified' a

non-f;deral entity may charge to the award only costs resultin8 from obligations incurred during the

firnding period and any pre award costs authorized by the federal program Also' if authorized by the

federalprogram, unobligated balances may be carried over and charged for obli8ations of a subsequent

funding peiiod. Obligation means the amounts of orders placed; contracts and subgrants awarded;

goodr_"no a".ia"a l."."ived; and similar transactions during a Siven period that will require payment by

the non-federalentity duringthe same or a future period
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF LOiZA

S€HEDUu Or FTNDTNGs AND QuEsnoNED Cosrs (CoNnNUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,2011

SECIION I II. - FEDERALAWARDS FINDINGS AND qUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUEO)

Findint No' 6-11- Disburs€ment Test (CONTINUED)

- Effect:

TheMunicipalitycouldbeexposedtoadministrativeactionbythegrantorandcostcouldlesdessallowed
- by g."nt".

- Questioned cost:

- 
S 1,088.71

Reaommendation:

- w" recommend that the Municipality estabtishes an adequate internal control system to ascertain

_ 
compliance with the Reporting requirement'

65


